
Town of Simsbury 
 
933 HOPMEADOW STREET  SIMSBURY, CONNECTICUT 06070 
 

                      Office of Community Planning and Development
 

 
To:  Simsbury Zoning Board of Appeals  
 
From: George K. McGregor, AICP, Planning & Community Development Director 
 
Date:  May 22, 2024 
 
RE: Application ZBA #24-03 of Timothy Martin Applicant/Owner; for a variance from Section 3.9 of 
the Simsbury Zoning Regulations to reduce the required lot frontage by ±150’ from 200’ to 50’, 
associated with the construction of a single-family home on the undeveloped lot at the end of Lark Road 
sometimes referred to as 0 Lark Road (Assessor’s Map D03 Block 208 Lot 003A) Unique ID 31022401, 
Simsbury, CT 06070, zone R-40.   

 
Summary of Request: 
 
The Applicant is the owner of a 2.861-acre parcel located at the terminus of Lark Rd. in Simsbury, 
Connecticut. Lark Rd. extends approximately 802 linear feet from Cardinal Rd. and host’s eight single-
family lots constructed circa 19671. The Applicant’s parcel lies at westernmost point of Lark Rd. which 
terminates as a cul-de-sac at the Applicant’s property: 
 
 

 

                                                           
1 Construction dates derived from Town Property Cards 
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The physical cul-de-sac does not extend to the Applicant’s property but it appears that the Town right-of-
way extends to the property line with a frontage length of fifty (50) feet. The property is zoned R-40 
(Residential). According to Section 3.9 (Dimensional Requirements) of the Town Zoning Regulations, the 
minimum frontage requirement for this zone is two-hundred (200) feet on an approved public street. 
Thus, the Applicant has requested a one-hundred-fifty (150) foot variance from this dimensional 
requirement. 
 
The Applicant describes in the Zoning Board of Appeals application form the specific hardship justifying 
the request: “Without the variance I am unable to use the property in its prescribed use as a single-family 
home site”.2 The Applicant has provided a site layout (undated; received by Town Staff via email on 
5/2/24) for the proposed single-family home: 
 

 

 
 
 
Background 
 
Mr. Martin and Dauntless Construction, LLC originally acquired a 4.58 parcel in 20113. The parcel 
formerly known as 9 Dogwood Lane and identifiable in Town Clerk records as far back as 1900, 
contained a single-family home with access to Dogwood Lane.  In 2012, Dauntless recorded a free-split 
with the Town Clerk’s Office, creating a Parcel A (1.72 acres with house) and a new Parcel B (2.86 
acres), the subject of this variance application. This map recordation is known as #3976 in the Town 
Clerk records4. The free-split was recorded with the Simsbury Town Clerk on February 24, 2012 without 
demonstrating the required frontage5.  
 
In early 2015, after acquiring the Parcel B from Dauntless LLC,  Mr. Martin accelerated his plan to 
construct a home on the property. Staff informed the Applicant at the time that there were zoning issues 

                                                           
2 Zoning Board of Appeals Application Form dated 4/20/24 (stamped received April 23, 2024) 
3 Mr. Martin was the only member of Dauntless Construction, LLC, see quitclaim deed/deed book 884 page 29 
4 Map 3976 is attached to the Staff Report 
5 A Staff letter in September 2011 raised this issue with the Applicant 
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and potential environmental issues on site (there are wetlands present)6. Staff concluded that it could not 
sign a zoning permit for a new home due to the failure of the Parcel B lot to meet minimum frontage 
requirements. 
 
On or about April 1, 2015 Mr. Martin filed an appeal of the Zoning Administrator’s decision to deny a 
zoning permit for the single-family home. On or about August 4, 2015, Mr. Martin filed a variance 
request for a one-hundred fifty (150) foot variance from the required two-hundred (200) foot minimum 
frontage requirement. The Zoning Board of Appeals upheld the position of Town Staff in the former 
(May 22, 2015); the ZBA failed to approved the Applicant’s variance in the latter (August 26, 2015). 
 
The Applicant appealed the variance decision by the ZBA to State Superior Court where the Court upheld 
the ZBA’s decision. 
 
 
Other Items 
 
The Applicant is not prohibited from filing a new Zoning Board of Appeals variance request. Mr. Martin 
has a right to file a new variance application and is due a fundamentally fair process. Although Staff 
decided it necessary by way of background and relevant facts to detail the property’s history, the ZBA 
should review the application as it would any other and apply the variance Criteria found in Section 16.C 
of the Zoning Regulations.  
 
In the event a variance is granted: 
 
There are wetlands on the property, as shown on the site plan submission from the Applicant. A wetland 
permit from the Inland Wetlands Agency will be required prior to the issuance of any building permit, if 
applicable. 
 
Approval from the Farmington Valley Health District for the septic and drain field will also be required 
prior to the issuance of a building permit. 
 
There may be other permits required not contemplated in this report. 
 
Criteria for Variance Review: 
 

Pursuant to Section 16.C, Variances, a variance from the terms of these regulations shall not be 
granted by the Board of Appeals unless and until the Board shall make a written finding in its minutes as 
to all of the following: 
 
Criterion 1.  That special conditions and circumstances exist that are peculiar to the land, structure, or 

building involved and are not applicable to other lands, structures, or buildings in the area; 
 
Criterion 2.  That these special circumstances relate to the condition of the land or parcel; 

 
Criterion 3.  That the special conditions and circumstances are not related to the circumstances of the 

applicant and have not resulted from the actions of the applicant or the predecessor in title; 
 
Criterion 4.  That the special circumstances constitute an exceptional difficulty or unusual hardship not 

of the applicant's making and are not solely a financial detriment; 
 

Criterion 5.  That literal interpretation of the provisions of these Regulations would deprive the 
applicant of rights commonly enjoyed by other properties in the same district; 

 

                                                           
6 Staff Member Correspondence March 4 and April 6, 2015 



4 
 

 

Criterion 6.  That granting the variance requested will not confer upon the applicant any special 
privilege or use that is denied by these Regulations to other lands, structures, or buildings in 
the same district: 

 
Criterion 7.  That these circumstances justify the granting of the variance; 

 
Criterion 8.  That the variance, if granted, is the minimum variance that will make possible the 

reasonable use of the land, building, or structure; and 
 

Criterion 9.  That the granting of the variance will be in harmony with the general purpose and intent of 
these Regulations, and will not be injurious to the neighborhood, or otherwise detrimental 
to the public welfare. 

 
 
 
DRAFT Motion(s) 
 
Draft Motions will be provided separately to the Board. 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Attachments 
 

1. Letter to Tim Martin from Staff Member Howard Beach, September 23, 2011 
2. Letter to Tim Martin from Staff Member Glidden, March 4, 2015 
3. Letter to Tim Martin from Staff Member Glidden, April 6, 2015 
4. Recorded Free-Split Map #3976, dated January 12, 2012, recorded February 24, 2012. 
5. Quitclaim Deed to Parcel B Notarized February 26, 2015.  




















